
Let Us Be Your Guide

This brochure will guide you during a tour of 
Hudson's famed Western Reserve Academy.  
Many of the areas and buildings on this tour are 
listed in the National Register of Historic Places.  
Those properties with the white ”HHA” marker 
have been researched and authenticated by 
Hudson Heritage Association and may be 
noteworthy for their architecture, their past 
ownership or for the activities that took place 
within them. The markers typically carry the 
name of the original owner of the property.  

This area is blessed with a range of architecture 
representative of the Western Reserve and 
other styles of significance.  Be sure to note the 
features and elements of each building that help 
make Hudson such a rich reflection of its past 
and its citizenry – a storied group of individuals 
who were determined to build a community 
reflecting the elegance of New England in the 
Ohio wilderness.

Take This Tour Using Your Mobile Device!

Visit: http://hudsonheritage.org/walking-tours/
or scan the code below

A Walking Tour of Hudson’s
Western Reserve Academy

& Its Neighbors

Approximate Walking Time: 30-40 minutes

A Brief History of Hudson

Two ambitious men and well-time doses of prosperity and 
poverty produced and preserved the Hudson you see today.

David Hudson of Goshen, Connecticut, dreamed of founding 
“an altar to God in the wilderness.”  In 1799, he led a group 
of settlers to the township which he had purchased from the 
Connecticut Land Company.  In 1802, he founded a 
Congregational church in town.  By 1826, from his home at 
318 North Main Street, he could see the first building of 
Western Reserve College, referred to as the Yale of the West.

Religious freedom and the abolition of slavery were 
important to Hudson’s early New England settlers.  The 
Underground Railroad had active stations here and the 
college was a center of abolitionist debate.  John Brown, of 
Harper’s Ferry notoriety, grew up in Hudson.  

Hudson blossomed during the 1840s with intellectual fervor 
and railroad fever.  In the last half of the century, a series of 
events – the failure of railroad investments, the 1882 
departure of the college for Cleveland, and a terrible fire on 
Main Street in 1892 – sent the town into economic decline.

Millionaire landowner and railroad pioneer James W. 
Ellsworth revitalized Hudson after a mild depression hit the 
Western Reserve.  Returning to his hometown in 1907, he 
planned a model community with electric, water and 
wastewater plants, paved streets lined with elm trees and 
underground utility lines.  He also restored the derelict college 
buildings, reopening them as Western Reserve Academy.  

After Ellsworth retired to Italy, development slowed during 
the Depression and Hudson remained a small village and 
rural township until construction of the Ohio Turnpike in the 
1950s made it more accessible.  An attempt in 1962 to 
demolish the 1839 Brewster Store at 5 Aurora Street 
galvanized citizen e�orts to preserve the character of the 
town and led to the establishment of Hudson Heritage 
Association.  In 1994, Hudson Township and Hudson Village 
merged to form one government for the area David Hudson 
had purchased nearly two centuries earlier. For more information, visit 
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1) College Street from Aurora Street to Hudson Street, 
Brick Row
Two months after Ohio became a state in 1803, the Ohio 
State Assembly gave David Hudson and 12 others the right 
to found a college. Classes were not held until 1826, when 
the first building was erected high on a ridge in Hudson.  
Five other buildings soon followed in line. Those still 
standing include Loomis Observatory (1838), The Chapel 
(1836), the President’s House (1829-30) and North Hall 
(1837-38). In 1913, J.W. Ellsworth built Seymour Hall (115 
College Street) on the site of two original buildings that had 
been demolished.

2) 88 College Street (1879/1908) Hayden Hall
Built as a cheese warehouse for Straight and Son, this 
building was renovated to its present form by J. W. 
Ellsworth in 1908. Today, this structure houses the music 
department of Western Reserve Academy.

3) 92 College Street (1835) Harvey Coe House
The Reverend Harvey Coe was the first elected trustee of 
Western Reserve College and a vocal part of the Abolition 
controversy that raged on the campus in the early 1830s.  
Details in the house were copied from pattern books, a 
common practice at the time. 

4) 93 College Street (1838) Loomis Observatory
The second oldest observatory in the United States, this 
building still houses the original instruments purchased in 
Europe by Professor Loomis in 1837. Loomis designed the 
building; Simeon Porter built it to his specifications.

5) 36 Baldwin Street (1846) Vernon D Taylor House
A classic Greek Revival house, the front door and door case of 
this building were designed from a pattern book by Asher 
Benjamin, who greatly influenced American architecture before 
the Civil War. 

6) 20 Baldwin Street (1851) Bunnell-Read House
This Gothic Revival cottage was built by Frederick Bunnell, an 
early Hudson builder, as an investment property. 

7) 130-132 College Street (c. 1841) Philo Wright House
Probably built by Porter and Rice, architects for the Athenaeum 
and Nathan Seymour’s house, this structure has been much 
altered and serves as an Academy dormitory.

8) 135 College Street (1836) Academy Chapel
The focal point of WRA’s significant “Brick Row,” the plans for 
the Chapel came from New England and were similar to those 
for Johnson Chapel at Amherst College. The ground floor 
originally served as the college library.

9) 147 College Street (1837-38) North Hall
Built from a mail order plan from New Haven, Connecticut, this 
Federal building – the least altered of all Academy structures – 
has remained a dormitory for its entire history.

10) 153-155 College Street (1829-30) The President’s House
Designed and built by architect/builder Lemuel Porter to house 
the College president and head of the theological department, 
it is considered one of the most elegant buildings in the 
Western Reserve. The fine detail of the twin doorways and the 
graceful fanlights are examples of the Federal style.

11) 120 Hudson Street (1832) Elizur Wright, Jr House
Gambrel-roofed houses are unusual in the Western Reserve.  
This one was built by Leander Starr for Elizur Wright Jr., a 
mathematics professor often called “the father of American Life 
Insurance.” An ardent Abolitionist, Wright resigned from the 
Western Reserve faculty over the colonization/abolition 
controversy. His father, a brilliant mathematician in his own 
right, stepped in at the age of 72 to replace his son.

12) 113 Hudson Street (1855) Gross-Gregory House, 109 
Hudson Street (1855) Baldwin-McKisson House
These two Gothic Revival cottages were built during Hudson’s 
railroad era. The lancet window on one has been replaced by 
two windows. 

13) 79 Hudson Street (1831) Rufus Nutting House
Professor Rufus Nutting was the first resident of this Federal 
style house. Its doorway, fanlight and 12-over-12 windows are its 
most outstanding features.  It has been a dining hall and a 
faculty residence for both the college and the academy.

14) 73 Hudson Street (c.1835) Morley Cottage
This unpretentious cottage has been home to several renowned 
men: Ansel Clark, newspaper editor; Elias Loomis, astronomer; 
and Edward William Morley, who first calculated the atomic 
weight of oxygen and whose work contributed to Einstein’s 
Theory of Relativity.

15) 169 College Street (1839) Carroll Cutler House
Built by Professor Clement Long, this Federal brick house was 
used as the o�cial residence of Carroll Cutler, president of the 
college at the time of its move to Cleveland. It was renovated by 
J.W. Ellsworth in 1913.
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16) 187 College Street (1843) The Athenaeum
Built by Porter and Rice to house the college’s natural science 
studies, this late Federal style building was to have been the 
first structure in a second Brick Row extending to the north.  
The other structures were never built. Ohio’s first Phi Beta 
Kappa chapter was founded here in 1847. 

17) 15 Prospect Street (1843) Seymour House
Classics professor Nathan Perkins Seymour’s was the only 
house built of the five faculty residences planned for this block.  
His builders were Lemuel Porter’s son Simeon and Archibald 
Rice, an architect brought from Connecticut to help complete 
the Brick Row extension at Western Reserve College. 

18) 178 College Street (1922) Ellsworth Hall
Serving in turns as a dormitory, dining room and common room 
for Western Reserve Academy, this large building reflects the 
architectural style of the original college buildings. Designed by 
J.W.C. Corbusier, it is part of James Ellsworth’s rebuilding 
project for the school.

19) Chapel Street Old Hudson Township Burying Ground
This cemetery served as the final resting place for Hudson’s 
early settlers. It closed in 1837. The town’s founder, David 
Hudson, is buried here, as is Owen Brown, father of Abolitionist 
John Brown.

Want to see more of historic Hudson? To learn about the heart 
of Hudson’s historic downtown, return to 36 North Main Street 
and begin Tour #1.




